
 

 

 
ADDENDUM TWO QUESTIONS and ANSWERS 

 
 
Date:  July 23, 2018 
 
To:  All Bidders  
 
From:  Annette Walton/Nancy Storant, Buyers 

AS Materiel State Purchasing Bureau 
 
RE:  Addendum for Request for Proposal Number RFP 5882 Z1 to be opened August 6, 2018 at 

2:00 P.M. Central Time. 
 
 

Questions and Answers 
 
Following are the questions submitted and answers provided for the above mentioned Request for 
Proposal.  The questions and answers are to be considered as part of the Request for Proposal.  It 
is the Bidder’s responsibility to check the State Purchasing Bureau website for all addenda or 
amendments. 

Question 
Number 

RFP 
Section 

Reference 

RFP 
Page 

Number 

Question State Response 

1. E.1 c & d 26 
The RFP references 2 
NITC Standards & 
Guidelines on page 26, 
Section E.1 (3-205 Street 
Centerline Standard & 3-
206. Address standard).  
Both of those standards on 
page 11 have the following 
paragraph under 1.4 Data 
Format: 

“The data format provided 
will need to be in a format 
that can be interpreted by 
commercial GIS software, 
preferably as an Esri 
geodatabase. A 
geodatabase schema 
including domains can be 
provided free upon request 
by contacting the State of 
Nebraska, Office of the 
CIO GIS Shared Services.” 

Will the standardized 
database schema 
referenced be available 
prior to RFP due date for 
bidders to review  

The current schema will be 
made available through the 
State of Nebraska 
Purchasing Bureau upon 
request. 
 
Please see I.B. 
Communication with State 
Staff.  
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and is the schema 
intended to be used as the 
model to standardize the 
NG9-1-1 datasets? 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2. V. B. 25 Can you identify all 
contractors who were 
previously approved as a 
“vendor of choice” 
selected through an earlier 
RFP process to provide 
911-related services? 

GeoComm and GIS 
Workshop 
 
 

3. V. B. 25 Are the contractors 
previously identified as a 
“vendor of choice” for 911-
related services precluded 
from submitting a proposal 
in response to this RFP 
because of their role in 
maintaining GIS data for 
PSAPs? 

Yes. 
 
 

4. V. C. 25 The RFP states that the 
web portal “must be 
capable of accepting GIS 
data in any ESRI format.” 
Is it acceptable for bidders 
to limit the upload to a 
shapefile or file 
geodatabase? 

Yes. 
 

5. V. E. 1. 26 Are bidders required to 
submit a sample QA/QC 
Plan as part of the RFP 
response/submittal or are 
bidders only required to 
submit a description of 
their qualifications and 
process for creating a 
QA/QC Plan, as is typical 
in other procurements? 

V.F.1. QA / QC PROJECT 
METHODOLOGY 
Contractor shall deliver a 
QA/QC Project Plan 
proposing Contractor’s 
methodology for 
accomplishing the Project 
and satisfying all 
requirements in this RFP. 
Please submit this with your 
response. 

6. V. E. 2. 26 Are bidders required to 
submit the Detailed Action 
Plan as part of the RFP 
response/submittal or are 
bidders only required to 
submit a description of 
their qualifications and 
process for creating a 
Detailed Action Plan, as is 
typical in other 
procurements? 

V.F.2. DETAILED ACTION 
PLAN 
Please provide a detailed 
action plan that includes 
specifics on how 
implementation will be 
accomplished. 
Please submit this with your 
response. 

7. VII. A. 33 The Cost Proposal form 
requests a single annual 
cost for Initial Contract 
First Year, Initial Contract 

A detailed cost break-down 
is not required. The bidder 
is required to complete the 
state’s “Cost Proposal”.  
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Second Year, Optional 
Renewal One – Year 
Three, Optional Renewal 
Two – Year Four. Section 
VII (Cost Proposal 
Requirement) on page 33 
states “This summary shall 
present the total fixed price 
to perform all of the 
requirements of the RFP.  
The bidder must include 
details in the State’s Cost 
Proposal supporting any 
and all costs.” Please 
confirm if a detailed cost 
breakdown is required vs. 
an overall annual cost per 
the cost proposal form. 

 
 

8. VII. A. 33 The RFP requests a fixed 
price proposal. There are 
some aspects of the scope 
of work that are defined in 
general terms, such as the 
need for Customer Service 
(phone and email support) 
and Training but the level 
of effort for these services 
can vary based on 
demand. Can you provide 
the total budget that is 
available so that bidders 
can appropriately scale 
their planned level of effort 
for the overall contract? 

No. Please provide a 
response that best meets 
the requirements of this 
RFP. 
 

9. N/A N/A There is no proposal page 
limit as defined in the RFP, 
is there a page limit or 
proposal size that is 
preferred by the 
procurement committee? 

There is no page limit set 
for this RFP. 

10. N/A N/A 
What is the proposed 
schedule for this project? 

The term of the contract will 
be two (2) years 
commencing upon notice to 
proceed. The contract 
includes the option to 
renew for two (2) additional 
one (1) year periods upon 
mutual agreement of the 
Parties 
 
The QA/QC requirements 
will be continual throughout 
the life of the contract.  

11. N/A N/A What is the specific 
budget for this project? 

See Question 8.  
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12. N/A N/A Can a firm outside of the 
State of Nebraska submit 
a response? 

Yes. 

13. C # 2 25 Is standardization of the 
NG9-1-1 datasets 
intended to be a 
requirement before the 
data is ran through the 
quality checks listed in 
section E #3-6?   
 
If so, will the state 
create/provide the 
standardized database 
with set field names and 
domains? 

Yes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
See Question 1. 

14. C 25 
If NG9-1-1 data is provided 
to the portal as a shapefile, 
is it the vendors 
responsibility to import 
shapefile(s) a 
geodatabase or is the 
correct file format for the 
upload going to be a 
geodatabase? 

Either shapefile(s) or a 
geodatabase is acceptable.  

15. C 25 
 Will there be a contact list 
available of PSAP 
representatives that qualify 
as authorized users for the 
contractor’s portal or is 
that a list the QC/QA 
contractor will need to 
compile? 

An authorized list will be 
provided to the awarded 
Contractor.  

16. E 3 & 4 a & b 26 
Which entity is responsible 
for obtaining the MSAG & 
TN lists for each PSAP 
and  

is the intent for the initial 
lists to be available by 
contract start date 
(October 1, 2018)? 

PSAP. 
 
 
 
 
 
This information will not be 
available at contract start 
date. 

17. E 26 
Newest draft NENA 
Standard for NG9-1-1 Data 
Model (STA-006, last 
review dated March 2018) 
requires address points.  
How many counties 
currently have address 
points  

 

and what is the expected 
time frame for completion 

 
 
 
 
 
There are approximately 36 
counties with address 
points, which are in various 
stages of accuracy.  
 
We have not set a date on 
how soon the address 
points need to be done 
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for counties that do not yet 
have address points? 

since this is a new NENA 
requirement.  

18.   
Are there plans for 
revisions to the Nebraska 
PSC Next Generation 911 
GIS Data Policy to require 
address points to reflect 
the most current changes 
to the NENA Standard for 
NG9-1-1 Data Model? 

Yes.  
 

19. E 1 & 2 26 
How many counties in the 
state have the aerial 
photography to verify the 
spatial accuracy specified 
in NITC standards (3-205 
& 3-206, 1.2.2.1 & 1.2.3.1) 
& will those aerials be 
made available for the 
QA/QC process? 

Aerial photography is 
available of varying 
accuracy for all counties in 
the State of Nebraska. 
 
If necessary, the 
Commission will assist the 
awarded contractor in 
obtaining this information. 

20. E 1.c 26 
Are there resources 
available to cross check 
and verify attribute data of 
the NITC required 
StreetOwner and 
StreetMaint fields? 

No. 
 
The fields in question are 
maintained by the 
Nebraska Department of 
Transportation (NDOT) and 
not the awarded contractor. 

21. E.1.c 26 
What resources will be 
available to verify the NITC 
required centerline field 
LRS_ID? 

 
See Question 20. 

22. E 5.d 27 
In addition to obtaining 
MSAG & TN records, are 
the telephone companies 
list of ESZs and 
associated emergency 
service responders going 
to be requested in order to 
cross check against the 
GIS data? 

No.  

23. F.8.b 29 
Is the state conducting 
additional outreach to 
PSAPS regarding 
preparing GIS data for 
NG9-1-1 compliance  

or does that training 
responsibility fall on the 
QC/QA vendor? 

 
Yes.  
 
 
 
Please see section V.F.8.b. 
“Training must also be 
made available to local 
agencies and designated 
Commission personnel on 
the Contractor’s QA//QC 
process.” 
The QA/QC awarded 
contractor is not 
responsible for training on 
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preparing GIS data for 
NG9-1-1 compliance.  

24. V. Project 

Description 

and Scope of 

Work 

B. Project 
Overview 

25 
Has Nebraska completed 
a QA/QC project on GIS to 
MSAG and ALI and,  

if so, what were the 
results? 

No. However, some areas 
of the State are undertaking 
this.  
 
 
 
We do not have the results 
yet.  

25. V. Project 

Description 

and Scope of 

Work 

C. Project 

Requirements 

25 
Will a NG9-1-1 GIS data 
outreach program be 
necessary or all PSAPs 
currently participating? 

 
The state is unable to 
answer this question with 
the limited information 
provided.  

26. V. Project 

Description 

and Scope of 

Work 

C. Project 

Requirements 

25 
What is the total number of 
agencies that will be 
submitting GIS data? 

Currently, there are two 
vendors and four counties 
that will be submitting data. 
This may be subject to 
change. 

27. V. Project 

Description 

and Scope of 

Work 

C. Project 

Requirements 

25 
What is the total number of 
3rd party GIS data 
management vendors that 
may be submitting GIS 
data on behalf of an 
agency? 

 
Please see Question 2. 

28. V. Project 

Description 

and Scope of 

Work 

C. Project 

Requirements 

25 
Will data be submitted 
both at the individual 
county level and at 
regional level where data 
has already been 
coalesced from agencies 
within the region? 

Currently, data is only 
submitted at the county 
level.   

29. V. Project 

Description 

and Scope of 

Work 

C. Project 

Requirements 

25 The RFP indicates that the 

portal must be capable of 

accepting GIS data in any 

ESRI format; 

NebraskaMap currently 

collects parcel, streets, 

and address points data 

for the state. 

What is the current GIS 
database format used by 
NebraskaMap (shapefile, 
file geodatabase, or SDE) 
and is it the intent to 
continue to use this 

This question is outside the 
scope of the RFP. The 
PSC has no responsibility 
for NebraskaMap.   
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database format? 

30. V. Project 

Description 

and Scope of 

Work 

E.Technical 

Requirements 

26 Are all NITC fields to be 

validated for consistency, 

even if they are not related 

to 9-1-1 location validation 

and geospatial call routing 

specifically? 

Yes. 

31. V. Project 

Description 

and Scope of 

Work 

E.Technical 

Requirements 

26 Are all NITC fields to be 

included in the state-level 

GIS database maintained 

by the vendor, or would a 

subset of fields required 

for NG9-1-1 location 

validation and call routing 

be sufficient for the 

coalesced state-level GIS 

database? 

The awarded Contractor 
will not be required to 
maintain a Statewide GIS 
database.  

32. V. Project 

Description 

and Scope of 

Work 

E.Technical 

Requirements 

26 The RFP references both 

an ALI to street centerline 

comparison and ALI to 

address point comparison 

but the compliance report 

only references address 

points to ALI match rate. 

Are both ALI comparison 

types to be included in 

reports? 

Yes.  

33. V. Project 

Description 

and Scope of 

Work 

E.Technical 

Requirements 

26 The RFP calls for 

identifying “Incorrectly 

named road segments.” 

How would these be 

identified in an automated 

QA/QC process, 

 and will a domain of 

allowable street names be 

enforced by current editing 

tools? 

 
 
 
 
Please provide the best 
response that meets the 
requirements of the RFP. 
 
 
No.  

34. V. Project 

Description 

and Scope of 

Work 

E.Technical 

Requirements 

26 Another method for 

standardizing domain 

content is for the GIS 

editing tools to standardize 

the content. 

Do the current editing tools 

used by the two approved 

vendors standardize all 

domain content? 

No.  

35. V. Project 27 The RFP calls for The bidder should provide 
a solution that best meets 
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Description 

and Scope of 

Work 

E.Technical 

Requirements 

validating “Correct 

boundaries (police, fire, 

EMS) included in the ESZ 

boundary.” 

How would an automated 

QA/QC process know 

whether or not the 

boundaries are “correct” or 

“incorrect” other than 

through performing 

topology checks and 

attribute validation? 

the requirements of the 
RFP.  

36. V. Project 

Description 

and Scope of 

Work 

E.Technical 

Requirements 

27 Are the MSAG and ALI to 

GIS comparisons to be 

performed upon every 

upload or periodically? If 

periodically, what is the 

required frequency? 

The comparison is to be 
performed upon each 
upload, so that the 98% 
match rate is achieved and 
then maintained. 
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ADDENDUM TWO,  

REVISED SCHEDULE OF EVENTS 
 
Date:  July 23, 2018  
 
To:  All Bidders  
 
From:  Annette Walton/Jennifer Eloge, Buyers 

AS Materiel Purchasing  
 

RE:  Addendum for RFP Number 5882 Z1 to be opened August 6, 2018 at 2:00 P.M. Central Time. 
 
 

Schedule of Events 
 
The State expects to adhere to the tentative procurement schedule shown below.  It should be noted, 
however, that some dates are approximate and subject to change.  It is the Bidder’s responsibility to check the 
State Purchasing Bureau website for all addenda or amendments. 
 

ACTIVITY DATE/TIME 
1.  State responds to written questions through RFP “Addendum” and/or 

“Amendment” to be posted to the Internet at:  

http://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html  

July 16, 2018 
July 23, 2018 

2.  Proposal opening 
Location: State Purchasing Bureau 
  1526 K Street, Suite 130 
  Lincoln, NE 68508 

July 30, 2018 
2:00 PM 

Central Time 
August 6, 2018 

3.  Review for conformance of mandatory requirements July 30, 2018 
August 6, 2018 

4.  Evaluation period July 31, 2018 
Through 

August 15, 2018 
August 7 through August 22, 

2018 

5.  “Oral Interviews/Presentations and/or Demonstrations” (if required) 

 
TBD 

6.  Post “Letter of Intent to Award” to Internet at: 
http://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html   

August 22, 2018 
August 29, 2018 

7.  Contract finalization period  August 22, 2018 
Through 

September 20, 2018 
August 29, 2018 through 

September 27, 2018 

8.  Contract award September 21, 2018 
September 28, 2018 

9.  Contractor start date October 1, 2018 
October 8, 2018 

 
 
 
This addendum will become part of the proposal and should be acknowledged with the Request for 
Proposal response. 
 
 

http://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html
http://das.nebraska.gov/materiel/purchasing.html

